
ZC 06-27-12  Page 1 of 2 
 

Minutes: Russell Township Zoning Commission 
  Russell Fire-Rescue Station 
  June 27, 2012 
 
Present: Richard E. Snyder, Chairman 
  Bruce Murphy 
  Ben Kotowski 
  Donna Weiss Carson 
  Tom Warren 
  Diana Steffen, Secretary 
 
The Chairman called the meeting to order at 7:38 p.m.   
 
MINUTES OF MAY 23, 2012 – Mr. Murphy moved to accept the minutes as presented, Ms. Weiss Carson 
seconded and the motion passed unanimously.   
 
The Chairman stated he wished to combine the next two agenda topics relating to the Land Use Guide 
Plan update.   
 
LAND USE GUIDE PLAN UPDATE - Mr. Snyder asked the Commission members if they had anything 
they wished to report on their topics.   
 
Regional Relationships – Ms. Weiss Carson said she gave copies of the current Guide Plan to 
N.O.A.C.A. and to The Chagrin River Watershed Partners, and explained to them that it is to be revised.  
Each of the agencies will submit an update of changes that have taken place since 1995.   
 
Demographic Trends and Projections – Mr. Kotowski said he will utilize the database Mr. Murphy has 
compiled from the County Auditor's website to identify buildable lots in order to determine the number of 
houses that could be built in the Township until build-out is reached.  Mrs. Steffen will assist him using 
maps in the Zoning Office.   
 
Land Use Patterns – Mr. Murphy said he found the Auditor's website contains a database that he was 
able to filter and download.  Once it is in a usable form he would like to make it available to share with the 
Commission, with each member having the opportunity to add pertinent information.  There are 3033 
parcels in the Township.  He said he felt that adding the zoning classification to each parcel would be 
very helpful.  Mrs. Steffen and Ms. Weiss Carson offered to help with this task.  Mr. Kotowski offered to 
set up a Google Doc file that everyone could access.  A new "existing land use" map will need to be 
created.  There are land use maps from 1975 and 1995.  Ms. Weiss Carson suggested adding all the 
parcels in the 208 Plan to the database.  Mrs. Steffen said she can do this.   
 
Mr. Murphy has asked C.R.W.P. for information on conservation easements, riparian setbacks and 
acreage.  Mrs. Steffen said she has a list of conservation easements that she can pass along to Mr. 
Murphy.  Ms. Weiss Carson recommended including information on riparian setbacks under Regional 
Relationships.   
 
Environmental Infrastructure – Mr. Warren discussed names of possible speakers for the September 
environmental program.  He would like the panel to have a balance that includes a representative from an 
environmental group, a representative of the oil and gas industry with fracking knowledge, and a scientist 
with expertise in hydrology and geology.  He has spoken to Greg Studen who is also willing to be on the 
panel.  Mr. Warren will contact some of the people mentioned with the goal of having four speakers on 
the panel.   
 
Mr. Warren said he would like to ask Dr. Eckstein to be on the panel since doing so would connect the 
program to the Guide Plan update.  Mr. Snyder noted that Dr. Eckstein has made a proposal regarding 
the study of the vulnerability of the aquifer, but the cost is much higher than expected.  Dr. Eckstein 



ZC 06-27-12  Page 2 of 2 
 

suggested testing 50 wells in the Township, but Mr. Snyder said that perhaps the cost could be lower if 
fewer wells were monitored.   
 
Mrs. Steffen said she has confirmed the date of the program with the Geauga Park District, but needs to 
give the G.P.D. a name for the program, exact times the room is required, and the setup of chairs and 
tables.  The Commission discussed names, such as "Fracking and Water Matters".  Ms. Weiss Carson 
said that handouts must be available.  There will be inserts put into local newspapers, a flyer, a news 
release, and information on the Township website.  Mr. Warren will write the news release and Mr. 
Kotowski will assist with the flyer.  It was agreed to reserve the room from 6:00 p.m. to 9:00 p.m. with the 
program taking place from 7:00 p.m. to 8:30 p.m.   
 
Survey – Mr. Snyder reviewed the process used in 1994 to hire a survey company.  He suggested asking 
a university to do the work since it would probably cost less than a private company.  He suggested 
talking to Kent, Akron and Cleveland State universities.  
 
The Commission, having reviewed the questions from the last survey, agreed to use the same questions 
with a few changes and additions.  Mr. Kotowski suggested adding a question relating to senior housing 
and in-law suites.  Mr. Murphy suggested adding a question under #13 with options such as separate 
zoning categories, encouraging in-law suites or encouraging temporary attached structures such as 
granny pods.  He also suggested adding a response, "Don't change anything," and asking for input on 
large lot zoning.  Mr. Snyder said the survey company can provide advice as to where to add questions in 
the survey.   
 
Mr. Kotowski said that encouraging children to walk to school and get more exercise is becoming popular, 
and he suggested there should be a question relating to creating a separate pedestrian right-of-way for 
parents and children.  Mr. Snyder noted that such a concept might attract more families with children to 
the Township but Russell may not be ideally suited due to its rural nature and the cost to widen roads to 
include walkways.  Mr. Warren said that perhaps there could be a question asking whether the Township 
should be trying to attract more young people and families.  Mr. Murphy said that the question could 
include a reference to the fact that the community is aging and ask what should be done to attract young 
people.  Mr. Snyder said they could speak to realtors about the reason fewer young families are moving 
to Russell, if in fact it is a trend.  Mr. Murphy asked if the demographic questions are still relevant.   
 
Action Item:  Mr. Kotowski to set up a Google Doc file for the database.  Mr. Kotowski and Mrs. Steffen to 
determine the number of buildable lots in the Township.  Mrs. Steffen and Ms. Weiss Carson to add the 
zoning classification of each parcel in Mr. Murphy's database.  Mrs. Steffen to identify the parcels in the 
208 plan in the database.  Prior to the next meeting:  Mr. Warren will contact potential speakers for the 
environmental program; Mr. Snyder will contact Akron, Kent and Cleveland State; Mr. Kotowski will 
research the size of the high school graduation classes in the 1970's and 1980's compared to today.   
 
OTHER BUSINESS – Mr. Snyder asked if anyone would be available to meet again before the next 
scheduled meeting.  Mr. Warren said he will be away from July 4 to 16.  No special meeting was 
scheduled.   
 
There being no other business Mr. Murphy moved to adjourn, Mr. Kotowski seconded and the meeting 
adjourned at 9:29 p.m.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
Diana Steffen             Date  Richard E. Snyder            Date 
Secretary      Chairman 
 
zc minutes 06-27-12 


